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	TRANSPORT STRATEGY
PUBLIC REALM & PLANNING  


	To:
	Robert Lester

	From:
	John Duffy 

	Date:
	15 February 2017

	Re:
	8/8A St George’s Mews
London

NW1 8XE

	Proposal:
	Use of building as dwelling house, single storey rear extension and elevation alterations including new ground floor entrance, new and replacement windows and rooflights.

	Reference:
	2016/5979/P


I have reviewed the plans and documents submitted with the planning application 2016/5979/P. The application is currently unacceptable due to the lack of cycle parking facilities. 
The site is located on the south side of St George’s Mews, at its western end. The property currently comprises an office unit at the ground floor and a residential unit at first floor. The property is currently vacant and in a poor state of repair. 
It is proposed that the property be converted to form a single residential unit with one bedroom located at ground floor and another at first floor. The proposals include replacing the existing rear extension and extending it further into the rear garden, internal and external alterations to the fabric of the building, including to the frontage on St George’s Mews as well as the rear including changes to the windows and roof lights. 
The site has a PTAL score of 3 which indicates that it has a medium level of accessibility by public transport. The nearest station is Chalk Farm, located to the north east, whilst the nearest bust stops are located to the north on Adelaide Road.  

Cycle and Car Parking
We expect cycle parking at new developments to be provided in accordance with the London Plan standards. For 2 bedroom units the requirement is for 2 spaces per unit, which gives a requirement for 2 spaces for this development. No cycle parking is shown on the submitted plans and this issue needs to be addressed by the applicant before the application is determined. 
In accordance with emerging Local Plan Policy T2 the new residential unit should be designated as being car free, i.e. the future occupants will be unable to obtain on-street parking permits from the Council. This arrangement should be secured by means of the Section 106 Agreement. 
Managing the impacts of construction on the surrounding highway network

Camden LDF Development Policy DP20 states that Construction Management Plans should be secured to demonstrate how a development will minimise impacts from the movement of goods and materials during the construction process (including any demolition works).  Camden Development Policy DP21 relates to how a development is connected to the highway network.  For some developments this may require control over how the development is implemented (including demolition and construction) through a Construction Management Plan (CMP). 
Vehicular access to St George’s Mews is limited by the presence of the building fronting Regent’s Park Road under which vehicles must pass to reach the site. Once within the site space is limited by the presence of parked vehicles. This limits the size of vehicle which can access the site and will make construction potentially difficult. Further information on how the development will be constructed is therefore necessary. 

Whilst construction traffic flows to the site are likely to be fairly low, due to the narrow confined nature of the mews and the sensitive nature of the local streets, a CMP must be secured. Our primary concern is public safety but we also need to ensure that construction traffic does not create (or add to existing) traffic congestion in the local area.  The proposal is also likely to lead to a variety of amenity issues for local people (e.g. noise, vibration, air quality, temporary loss of parking, etc.). The Council needs to ensure that the development can be implemented without being detrimental to amenity or the safe and efficient operation of the highway network in the local area. A CMP must therefore be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted.

In order to minimise traffic congestion and road safety issues during development works, construction vehicle movements are acceptable between 9.30am to 4.30pm on weekdays and between 8.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. If there is a school in the vicinity of the site or on the proposed access and/or egress routes, then deliveries must be restricted to between 9.30am and 3pm on weekdays during term time.  However, specific details would need to be agreed with Camden during development of the CMP. The CMP would need to be approved by Camden prior to works commencing on site.
We will also expect the development to be registered with the Considerate Constructors’ Scheme.  Details are available at the website below:
· https://www.ccscheme.org.uk/
The Council has a CMP pro-forma which must be used once a Principal Contractor has been appointed.  The CMP, in the form of the pro-forma, would need to be approved by the Council prior to any works commencing on site. A CMP Implementation Support Contribution of £1,140 would also need to be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted. The CMP pro-forma and an advice note providing further information on this financial contribution are available on the Council’s website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-applications/making-an-application/supporting-documentation/planning-obligations-section-106/
Highway and Public Realm Improvements directly adjacent to the site

Given the relatively limited scale of development it is considered that a Section 106 contribution towards repaving the footway adjacent to the site is unnecessary in this instance. 
Summary of Section 106 Planning Obligations

The application is currently unacceptable due to the lack of cycle parking facilities. 

The following section 106 planning obligations would be required if planning permission is granted:
· Residential unit to be secured as Car Free;

· Construction Management Plan (Pro-forma);
· CMP Implementation Support Contribution of £1,140; 
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